
 

 

Agenda 
Zumbrota City Council Regular Meeting,  

Thursday October 16, 2025, at 6:00 p.m., City Hall 
 

1. Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance 
  
2. Amendments/Adoption of Agenda 

 
3. Public Comments: (Individuals may address the City Council about any item of concern. Speakers 

must state their name and limit their remarks to five minutes. Generally, the City Council will not 
take official action on these items but may refer the matter to staff for a future report or direct that 
the matter be scheduled for a future meeting agenda.) 

 
4. Consent Agenda 

 
All items listed on the consent agenda are considered routine by the council and will be approved 
by one motion. There will be no separate discussion on these items unless a council member 
requests, in which case the item will be removed from the consent agenda and be considered in its 
normal sequence on the agenda. 

 
a. Minutes 10/2/25 Regular Meeting 
b. Pay Request #13 – Final – Mill and 6th Street Reconstruction 

 
5. Accounts Payable 10/2/2025 (Raasch) 
 
6. Public Hearings/Meetings 

a.  
 

7.  Unfinished Business 
a.  
 

8.  New Business 
a. Resolution 2025-31 Rezone 211 Walnut Street 
b. Resolution 2025-32 Street Vacation 211 Walnut Street 
c. Resolution 2025-33 Keller-Baartman Bridgeview Apartments Parking 
 

9.  Reports 
a. City Assistant Finance Director / Community Development Director / Public Works Director 

/ City Engineer / Library Director/Police Chief / City Attorney / Deputy City Administrator / 
City Administrator 

 b. Mayor Hammel 
 c. Council members, Raasch, Prigge, Bucher, Amundson 
 
10.  Adjournment 



 

 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

DATE: October 16, 2025 
TO:  Mayor Hammel and Members of the City Council 
FROM: Brian Grudem, City Administrator 
RE:  City Council Meeting October 16, 2025 
 

Consent Agenda 
 

Minutes: 10/2/2025 Regular Meeting 
Please review and approve the minutes of the October 2, 2025, Regular Meeting (attached). 
 

Pay Request #13 – Final – Mill and 6th Street Reconstruction 
Staff recommends approval of the final pay request for the Mill and 6th Street Reconstruction project. 
 

New Business 
 

Resolution 2025-31 Rezone 211 Walnut Street 
See the attached memo and resolution for rezone of 211 Walnut Street. A public hearing was held 
during the Tuesday October 14, 2025, Planning/Zoning meeting. There were a few questions related to 
potential trees screening the buildings, water and sewer routing and access. The applicants were in 
attendance to answer questions. The planning commission recommended approval of the rezone for 
211 Walnut Street. Staff recommends approval of the Resolution 2025 -31 Rezone 211 Walnut Street. 
 
Resolution 2025-32 Street Vacation 211 Walnut Street 
See the attached memo and resolution for street vacation of 211 Walnut Street. A public hearing was 
held during the Tuesday October 14, 2025, Planning/Zoning meeting. The planning commission 
recommended approval of the Street Vacation 211 Walnut Street. Staff recommends approval of the 
Resolution 2025 -32 Street Vacation 211 Walnut Street. 
 
Resolution 2025-33 Keller-Baartman Bridgeview Apartments Parking 
Please see the attached memo and resolution’s regarding the requested parking variance for the Keller-
Baartman Bridgeview Apartments project. I included two resolutions, one for denial and one for 
approval of the variance. 
 

A public hearing on this request was held at the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting on 
Tuesday, October 14, 2025. Several residents expressed concerns that the proposed development 
would not provide adequate parking for the area. 
 

City Administrator Grudem presented comparative parking ratios, noting that the proposed building 
will provide 1.74 parking spaces per unit, whereas the existing apartment building across the street 
provides approximately one or slightly fewer than one space per unit. Deputy City Administrator 
Myles Robb shared research from surrounding communities, most of which require 1.5 spaces per 
unit. A few communities require slightly more, but the overall average is approximately 1.43 spaces 
per unit. 
 
City staff intends to bring forward a proposal for Council consideration to amend the zoning ordinance 
to require 1.5 spaces per unit, aligning Zumbrota’s standards with comparable communities. 
However, Council action on the variance request is needed at this time. 



 

 

The Planning and Zoning Commission discussed the request extensively and determined that, in their 
opinion, letter “b” of the variance criteria was not met, as the property owner could comply by 
constructing fewer units. However, reducing the number of units would make the project unfeasible. 
The City received a $2.8 million workforce housing grant based on a 38-unit design, and the 
developer’s pro forma is also based on that unit count. 
 
The City’s current parking requirements are more restrictive than those found in most communities 
and may no longer reflect current trends, as fewer people own or drive vehicles. Many cities have 
updated their standards accordingly, and the existing apartment complex across the street demonstrates 
that providing even one parking space per unit has not led to parking shortages or neighborhood 
impacts. 
 



 

 

 CITY OF ZUMBROTA 
COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

OCTOBER 2, 2025 
6:00 P.M. 

TOWN HALL 
 

 
Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, Mayor Todd Hammel called the Zumbrota City Council to 
order at 6:00 PM. PRESENT: Mayor Todd Hammel, Council members Bob Prigge, Kevin Amundson, 
Joan Bucher, and Fred Raasch. Others present: City Administrator Brian Grudem, Finance/HR Director 
Kim Simonson, Deputy City Administrator Myles Robb, Police Chief Pat Callahan, Acting Public Works 
Director Jeff Meyers, Sergeant Tony Pasquale, Holly Galbus(remote), City Attorney Mike Flaherty 
(remote), Aaron Wichmann (remote), Library Director James Hill and RYAN and Laura Mokrycki. 

AMENDMENTS/ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
MOTION Amundson, second Bucher to adopt the agenda. Approved 5-0-0. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
Ryan Mokrycki asked for clarification regarding comments which anonymous posters had put on 
Facebook regarding funding the new swimming pool. Grudem explained the timing and process. The 
public comment closed at 6:12pm.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
MOTION Amundson, second Bucher to approve the consent agenda as follows: 
4-A. MINUTES – 09/18/2022025 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES  
4-B. PAY REQUEST 1 – ZUMBROTA 2025 STREETS 
4-C. PAY REQUEST 3 – FINAL POLICE ROOF REPAIR  
4-D. PAY REQUEST 7 – EAST 9TH STREET 
4-E. SSC BOARD OF DIRECTORS NOMINATION – BRIAN GRUDEM - 2026 
4-B. SELL OLD DECOMMISSIONED AIR COMPRESSOR  
Approved 5-0-0. 
 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE OCTOBER 2, 2025  
MOTION Prigge, second Amundson to approve the accounts payable of $47,934.70. Approved 5-0-0. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
7-A. 2026 BUDGET DISCUSSION 
Nothing changed at this point.  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
8-A. REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR A NEW CITY AUDITOR 
Simonson informed the Council the current city auditor will not be doing the 2025 audit therefore the 
City needs to go out for requests for proposals for a new auditor. MOTION Prigge, second Bucher to 
allow city staff to go out for proposals for a new auditor. Approved 5-0-0. 
 
 



 

 

8-B. INTERNAL POSTING FOR THE PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR POSITION 
The public works director position has been interim since May. There are qualified staff available to fill 
the position so the position could be posted internally. We have qualified candidates internally. 
MOTION Amundson, second Bucher to post the Public Works Director position internally with an 
October 16, 2025, deadline. Approved 5-0-0. 
 
8-C. SPECIAL MEETING TO AWARD POOL BIDS 
MOTION Amundson, second Bucher set a special meeting for October 23rd at 6:00 pm to award pool 
bids. Flaherty explained that although the Park Board can enter into contracts the bid specs were 
written with the stipulation it be awarded by City Council. Prigge said there needs to be more 
discussion about funding the gap and what is an acceptable bid. This will be on the work session 
agenda. 
 
COMMENTS 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR BRIAN GRUDEM 
Reported one union negotiation is finished, and the other is close to completion. 

The meeting was adjourned at 6:30 pm. 
         
                                                                      
 
       City Administrator Brian Grudem 



2905 South Broadway 
Rochester, MN 55904-5515 
Phone: 507.288.3923 
Email: rochester@whks.com 
Website: www.whks.com 

 
 

 

October 13, 2025 
 
 
Mr. Brian Grudem 
City Administrator 
City of Zumbrota 
175 West Ave  
Zumbrota, MN 55992 
 
RE:  Zumbrota, MN 

Mill & 6th Street Reconstruction 
Pay Request No. 13 - Final    

  
 
Dear Brian: 
 
Enclosed is Pay Request No. 13 - Final for work on the above referenced project.  We recommend 
the City Coucil accept and make final payment in the amount of $30,672.10 to: 

 

Schumacher Excavating, Inc. 
50 50 Warren Ave 
 Zumbrota, MN 55992 
  

Acceptance of the project will initiate the start of the two-year maintenance period, as specified 
within the contract documents.   
 
Please contact me if you have any questions. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

WHKS & CO. 
 
 
 
Scott Huneke, P.E. 
 
SH/bbs 
 
Enclosure 
 
cc: Jeff Meyers, City of Zumbrota 

Todd Schumacher, Schumacher Excavating, Inc. 
 William Angerman, WHKS (9562) 
 
 







CHECK PAYEE DESCRIPTION AMOUNT DEPARTMENT

82052 ACE HARDWARE ZUMBROTA SHIPPING 18.99 WATER

82053 ALLIED MEDICAL TRAINING TRAINING 125.00 POLICE

82054 BACKWOODS METAL WORKS LLC WELDING 450.00 STREETS

82055 BENEFIT RESOURCE LLC ADMIN SERVICES 250.00 ALL DEPTS

82057 BUDGET BLINDS BLINDS 4,995.00 ARPA

82058 BUSBY HARDWARE PARTS 303.98 PARK/POOL/WATER/SEWER

82059 CALIBRATIONS AND CONTROLS CALIBRATION 695.00 SEWER

82061 CINTAS CORPORATION RUGS AND SHOP TOWELS 122.98 GENERAL/STREETS

82062 CORE & MAIN WATER METERS 17,327.13 WATER/WATER RESTRICTED

82063 COUNTRYSIDE LANDSCAPING SCHROEDER MEMORIAL/TREES 39,966.06 GEN RES/TREE FUND

82064 DE LAGE LANDEN COPIER COSTS 106.30 POLICE

82065 FRONTIER WATER LEVEL INDICATORS 110.84 GENERAL/STREETS

82066 GOODHUE COUNTY ATTORNEY LEGAL FEES 2,330.86 GENERAL 

82067 GOPHER STATE ONE-CALL LOCATESD 48.60 WATER

82068 GRIMSRUD PUBLISHING INC PUBLISHING 273.44 GENERAL

82070 KNUTSON CONSTRUCTION POLICE ROOF 12,629.00 GENEERAL

82072 LINDE GAS & EQUIPMENT SHOP SUPPLIES 65.04 STREETS

82073 MAID IT CLEAN LLC CLEANING 504.00 GENERAL

82074 MN MUNICIPAL UTILITIES ASSOC QTRLY DUES 3,863.25 GENERAL

82075 MN RURAL WATER ASSOC TRAINING 75.00 WATER

82076 NAPA AUTO PARTS STORE PARTS 454.38 STREETS/SEWER

82077 NILSSENS SUPPLIES 28.83 GENERAL/SEWER

82078 ON-SITE COMPUTERS INC IT SUPPORT 791.00 GENERAL

82079 PHONE STATION PHONE REPAIR 82.50 GENERAL

82080 PRECISION EQUIPMENT SERVICES LLC DOT INSPECTION 900.50 STREETS

82081 RELIABLE HEATING &  COOLING FURNACE REPAIR 3,869.00 GENERAL

82082 ROCHESTER SAND & GRAVEL SEAL COATING 111,382.20 SEAL COATING

82083 SANTRAM LLC FUEL 64.90 SEWER

82084 SCHUMACHER EXCAVATING INC 9TH ST, BOOSTER STATION 82,732.19 9TH ST/WATER

82085 SHANE ELECTRIC INC HAND DRYERS 3,631.22 PK/GENERAL

82086 STREICHER'S UNIFORMS/BPV 1,730.93 POLICE

82087 UC LABORATORY TESTING 4,104.04 SEWER

82088 VERIZON CELL PHONES DATA 970.39 SEW/GEN/STR

82089 WHITEWATER TAX & CONSULTING AUDIT 24,000.00 GENERAL

82090 WHKS & CO POLICE ROOF 4,345.74 GENERAL

82091 ZTA FIRE DEPT RELIEF ASSOC FIRE STATE AID 56,141.88 PASS THRU

82092 ZTA VET CLINIC ANIMAL CONTROL 133.08 GENERAL

1069030 ZTA POSTMASTER UB POSTAGE 695.40 WAT/SEWER'

1069032 CITY OF ZUMBROTA UB CITY HALL 198.46 GENERAL

1069033 MINNESOTA ENERGY NATURAL GAS 47.42 GENERAL

1069034 XCEL ENERGY ELECTRICITY 4,331.00 WATER

1069035 ZTA TELEPHONE CO TELEPHONE 105.00 STREETS

1069036 CITY OF ZUMBROTA UB GARAGE 54.99 GENERAL

1069037 MINNESOTA ENERGY NATURAL GAS 62.16 GENERAL

CITY OF ZUMBROTA
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

OCTOBER 16, 2025



CHECK PAYEE DESCRIPTION AMOUNT DEPARTMENT

1069039 ZTA TELEPHONE CO TELEPHONE 218.76 SEWER

1069040 CITY OF ZUMBROTA UB SEWER 35.87 SEWER

1069041 MINNESOTA ENERGY NATURAL GAS 1,242.37 SEWER

1069043 ZTA TELEPHONE CO TELEPHONE 266.94 POLICE

1069044 XCEL ENERGY ELECTRICITY 5,737.38 STREET LIGHTING

1069045 ZTA TELEPHONE CO CABLE PAIR 18.09 WATER

1069046 XCEL ENERGY GARAGE ELECTRICITY 105.13 GENERAL

1069047 ZTA TELEPHONE CO TELEPHONE 252.76 GENERAL

1069048 XCEL ENERGY ELECTRICITY 225.48 WATER

1069049 XCEL ENERGY ELECTRICITY 1,357.92 WATER

TOTAL 394,578.38

DATE: October 16, 2025

MAYOR:

COUNCIL MEMBER:

CITY ADMINISTRATOR:



 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: October 16th, 2025 
TO:  Mayor Hammel and City Council 
FROM: Myles Robb, Deputy City Administrator 
RE:  AVS Rezone and Street Vacation 
 
AVS Rezone and Street Vacation 

Rachel Friese is seeking to put a new Veterinary clinic at 211 Walnut Street (new address). The 
parcels are currently zoned for agricultural but need to be rezoned to fit their commercial use. 
They will be zoned into C2 to fit with our comprehensive plan. 

In addition, this parcel is unique as it was originally platted for streets to go in-between (see 
picture below). They will need to have those streets vacated in order to build on the parcel. There 
are not any environmental concerns as no streets were ever put in to begin with.  

 



 
 

 
 

 
 
 

CITY OF ZUMBROTA 
RESOLUTION 2025-31 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF ZUMBROTA CITY COUNCIL APPROVING THE REZONE 

APPLICATION AT 211 WALNUT STREET, ZUMBROTA, MN 55992. 
 

WHEREAS SE MN Associates is the owner of the parcel of land located at 211 Walnut Street, 
Zumbrota, MN 55992; and, 
 

WHEREAS the subject property is identified as Parcel #72.460.0050; and, 
 

WHEREAS the owner of the property applied for a rezone application from Agriculture to Commercial 
2, and, 
 

WHEREAS following a public hearing on the application, the City of Zumbrota Planning Commission 
has recommended approval of the rezone application on October 14th, 2025; and, 
 

WHEREAS the City Council of Zumbrota will review the requested rezone application at its Meeting of 
October 16th, 2025 
 

WHEREAS the requested rezone application is in harmony with the purposes and intent of the ordinance 
and,  
 

WHEREAS a certificate of survey has been submitted; and, 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ZUMBROTA, MINNESOTA AS FOLLOWS: 
 

The application to issue a rezone at 211 Walnut Street to move from Agriculture to Commercial 2 is 
approved. 
 

Motion introduced by        , seconded by     and adopted this 16th day of October 2025 upon the following 
roll call vote: 
 

AYES:  
NAYS:  0 
ABSENT:  0 
 
SIGNED:      ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________    ____________________________  
Todd Hammel, Mayor     Brian Grudem, City Administrator 
  
 
    Aye Nay     Aye Nay 
 
Todd Hammel   ___     ____  Fred Raasch  ___     ____
 
Bob Prigge   ___     ____  Joan Bucher  ___      ____
       
Kevin Amundson  ___     ____   



 
 

 
 

 
 
 

CITY OF ZUMBROTA 
RESOLUTION 2025-32 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF ZUMBROTA CITY COUNCIL APPROVING THE STREET 

VACATION AT 211 WALNUT STREET, ZUMBROTA, MN 55992. 
 

WHEREAS SE MN Associates is the owner of the parcel of land located at 211 Walnut Street, 
Zumbrota, MN 55992; and, 
 

WHEREAS the subject property is identified as Parcel #72.460.0050; and, 
 

WHEREAS the owner of the property applied for a street vacation, seeking to vacate the originally 
platted Main Street, Oak Street, and alley, and, 
 

WHEREAS following a public hearing on the application, the City of Zumbrota Planning Commission 
has recommended approval of the street vacation on October 14th, 2025; and, 
 

WHEREAS the City Council of Zumbrota will review the requested street vacation at its Meeting of 
October 16th, 2025 
 

WHEREAS the requested street vacation is in harmony with the purposes and intent of the ordinance 
and,  
 

WHEREAS a certificate of survey has been submitted; and, 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ZUMBROTA, MINNESOTA AS FOLLOWS: 
 

The application to issue a street vacation at 211 Walnut Street to accommodate the new veterinary clinic 
is approved. 
 

Motion introduced by        , seconded by     and adopted this 16th day of October 2025 upon the following 
roll call vote: 
 

AYES:  
NAYS:  0 
ABSENT:  0 
 
SIGNED:      ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________    ____________________________  
Todd Hammel, Mayor     Brian Grudem, City Administrator 
  
 
    Aye Nay 
 
Todd Hammel   ___     ____  Fred Raasch   ___     ____
 
Bob Prigge   ___     ____  Joan Bucher   ___      ____
      
Kevin Amundson  ___     ____ 



 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: October 16th, 2025 
TO:  Mayor Hammel and City Council 
FROM: Myles Robb, Deputy City Administrator 
RE:  Keller-Baartman Variance 
 
Keller-Baartman Variance 

Keller-Baartman is seeking a variance on their property at 70 W 3rd Street in relation to the 
number of parking spots allowed per unit in building. Currently, our parking regulations in code 
require 2 parking spaces for 1 living unit, they are seeking to go to 1.5spaces/living unit. The 
approved civil plans will have 66 parking spaces, but per our ordinance 76 spots would be 
required. They currently have 1.74 spaces per living unit.  

Other cities have the following regulations (based on multi-family buildings):  

Rochester- .5/ dwelling unit 

Cannon Falls- 2.25/ unit 

Lake City- 1/bedroom unit 

Chatfield- 1.5/ unit 

Farmington- 1.5/unit 

Rosemount- 1/unit 

Red Wing- 2/unit 

 



 

SUBD. 12. VARIANCES.  

A. Criteria for granting variances. A variance to the provision of the Zoning Ordinance may 
be issued to provide relief to the landowner in those instances where the Ordinance 
imposes practical difficulties to the property owner in the use of the owners land. The 
City Council shall have the exclusive power to order the issuance of variances from the 
requirements of any official control including restrictions placed on nonconformities. 
Variances shall only be permitted when they are in harmony with the general purposes 
and intent of the official control and when the variances are consistent with the 
comprehensive plan.  

B. Variances may be granted when the applicant establishes:  
a. 1. There are practical difficulties in complying with the official control. “Practical 

difficulties”, as used in connection with the granting of a variance, means that the 
property owner proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted 
by an official control; and  

b. 2. The plight of the landowner is due to circumstances unique to the property not 
created by the landowner; and,  

c. 3. The variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality, 
and,  

d. 4. The variance requested is the minimum variance which would alleviate the 
practical difficulty; and  

e. 5. The variance would not be materially detrimental to the purposes of this 
Ordinance, or to property in the same zone.  

C. Except as otherwise specifically provided in this Subdivision, no use variances may be 
issued. 

D.  NOTE: Economic considerations alone do not constitute practical difficulties. Practical 
difficulties include, but are not limited too, inadequate access to direct sunlight for solar 
energy systems. Variances shall be granted for earth sheltered construction as defined in 
Minnesota Statutes City of Zumbrota – Zoning & Subdivision Ordinance Page 173 of 
250 Section 216C.06, Subdivision 14, when in harmony with the official controls.  

E. No variance may be granted that would permit any use that is not allowed in the zoning 
district in which the subject property is located. However, the City Council may permit as 
a variance the temporary use of a one family dwelling as a two family dwelling.  

 



 
 

CITY OF ZUMBROTA 
RESOLUTION 2025-33 

 
A RESOLUTION ADOPTING FINDINGS OF FACT AND REASONS FOR DENIAL OF 
VARIANCE APPLICATION OF KELLER-BAARTMAN PROPERTIES XIII LLC AT 70 
3RD STREET WEST, ZUMBROTA, MN 55992 

FACTS 

1. Keller-Baartman properties is building a new apartment building on a parcel of land located at 70 
3rd Street West, Zumbrota, MN 55992; and,  

2. The subject property is legally described as:  ORIGINAL PLAT W1/2 OF LOT 1 BLK 35 EX 
WLY 32FT OF NLY 58FT, & PT OF LOT 2 COM AT NE COR, W ALNG N LINE 33FT TO 
PO the City of Zumbrota, Goodhue County, Minnesota; and, 

3. Andy Baartman has applied to the City for a variance to construct a 38-unit apartment building, 
and is seeking a variance on off-street parking to go from 2 spaces a unit, to 1.5 spaces a unit. 

4. Following a public hearing on the application, the City of Zumbrota Planning Commission has 
recommended denial of the variance at its regular meeting on October 14th, 2025. 

5. The City Council of the City of Zumbrota reviewed the requested variance at its meeting of 
October 16th, 2025. 

 

APPLICABLE LAW 

6. Minnesota Statute Section 462.357, subd. 6 provides: 
a. Variances shall only be permitted (a) when they are in harmony with the general 

purposes and intent of the ordinance and (b) when the variances are consistent with 
the comprehensive plan. 

b. Variances may be granted when the applicant for the variance establishes that there 
are practical difficulties in complying with the zoning ordinance.  “Practical 
difficulties," as used in connection with the granting of a variance, means that (a) the 
property owner proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted by 
the zoning ordinance; (b) the plight of the landowner is due to circumstances unique 
to the property not created by the landowner; and (c) the variance, if granted, will 
not alter the essential character of the locality. 

7. City Ordinance allows variances if the applicant can establish: 
a. There are practical difficulties in complying with the official control. “Practical 

difficulties”, as used in connection with the granting of a variance, means that the 
property owner proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted by an 
official control; and  

b. The plight of the landowner is due to circumstances unique to the property not created by 
the landowner; and,  

c. The variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality, and,  
d. The variance requested is the minimum variance which would alleviate the practical 

difficulty; and  
e. The variance would not be materially detrimental to the purposes of the City Zoning 

Ordinance, or to property in the same zone. 
8. City Ordinance requires 2 parking spaces for every living unit in multi-family buildings.  

 
 



CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

9. The requested variance is in harmony with the purposes and intent of the ordinance and is 
consistent with the comprehensive plan. 

10. The applicant was able to establish practical difficulties in complying with the official 
control because the plight of the landowner was unique to the property. 

11. The unique circumstances to the property are created by the landowner because the 
building is not currently built, the property can be put to a reasonable use without 
granting the variance, and the unique circumstances are primarily economic in nature.  

12. The variance will alter the essential character of the locality because the proposed 
variance would decrease available parking in the downtown business district, which 
could increase traffic and parking congestion in the surrounding area. 

13. The variance requested is the minimum variance which would alleviate the perceived 
practical difficulty. 

14. The variance would not be materially detrimental to the purposes of the City Zoning 
Ordinance, as the property complies with permitted uses. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ZUMBROTA, MINNESOTA AS FOLLOWS: 

The application to issue a variance to allow Andy Baartman  to construct a new apartment 
building with lowered off-street parking requirements is hereby denied. 

 
Motion introduced by ____________, seconded by ___________ and adopted this 16th day of 
October 2025 upon the following roll call vote: 
 
AYES:  
NAYS:  
ABSENT:  
 
 
SIGNED:      ATTEST: 
 

___________________________   ____________________________________ 
Todd Hammel, Mayor     Brian Grudem, City Administrator 
  
    Aye Nay 
 
Todd Hammel             ___       ____ 
 

Bob Prigge   ___     ____ 
 

Joan Bucher   ___    ____ 
 

Kevin Amundson  ___     ____ 
 

Fred Raasch   ___     ____ 



 
 

               CITY OF ZUMBROTA 
RESOLUTION 2025-33 

 
A RESOLUTION ADOPTING FINDINGS OF FACT AND REASONS FOR APPROVAL 
OF VARIANCE APPLICATION OF KELLER-BAARTMAN PROPERTIES XIII LLC 
AT 70 3RD STREET WEST, ZUMBROTA, MN 55992 

FACTS 

1. Keller-Baartman properties is building a new apartment building on a parcel of land located at 70 
3rd Street West, Zumbrota, MN 55992; and,  

2. The subject property is legally described as: ORIGINAL PLAT W1/2 OF LOT 1 BLK 35 EX 
WLY 32FT OF NLY 58FT, & PT OF LOT 2 COM AT NE COR, W ALNG N LINE 33FT TO 
PO the City of Zumbrota, Goodhue County, Minnesota; and, 

3. Andy Baartman has applied to the City to construct a 38-unit apartment building, he is seeking a 
variance on off-street parking to go from 2 spaces per unit, to a total of 66 parking spaces for the 
development (approximately 1.74 spaces per unit). 

4. Following a public hearing on the application, the City of Zumbrota Planning Commission has 
recommended denial of the variance at its regular meeting on October 14th, 2025. 

5. The City Council of the City of Zumbrota reviewed the requested variance at its meeting of 
October 16th, 2025. 

 

APPLICABLE LAW 

6. Minnesota Statute Section 462.357, subd. 6 provides: 
a. Variances shall only be permitted (a) when they are in harmony with the general 

purposes and intent of the ordinance and (b) when the variances are consistent with 
the comprehensive plan. 

b. Variances may be granted when the applicant for the variance establishes that there 
are practical difficulties in complying with the zoning ordinance.  “Practical 
difficulties," as used in connection with the granting of a variance, means that (a) the 
property owner proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted by 
the zoning ordinance; (b) the plight of the landowner is due to circumstances unique 
to the property not created by the landowner; and (c) the variance, if granted, will 
not alter the essential character of the locality. 

7. City Ordinance allows variances if the applicant can establish: 
a. There are practical difficulties in complying with the official control. “Practical 

difficulties”, as used in connection with the granting of a variance, means that the 
property owner proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted by an 
official control; and  

b. The plight of the landowner is due to circumstances unique to the property not created by 
the landowner; and,  

c. The variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality, and,  
d. The variance requested is the minimum variance which would alleviate the practical 

difficulty; and  
e. The variance would not be materially detrimental to the purposes of the City Zoning 

Ordinance, or to property in the same zone. 
8. City Ordinance requires 2 parking spaces for every living unit in multi-family buildings.  

 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

9. The requested variance is in harmony with the purposes and intent of the ordinance and is 
consistent with the comprehensive plan. 
 



10. The plight of the landowner is due to circumstances unique to the property not 
created by the landowner. The city applied for a workforce housing development grant 
on the basis of a 38-unit apartment building, which means that the need for the variance 
was not caused by the applicant, but was caused by the city submitting such an 
application. 
 

11. The variance will not alter the essential character of the locality. 
The proposed building is in close proximity to a similar building constructed by the same 
developer in 2022. The use of the building is identical to the previously constructed 
building in 2022, and past experience with the apartment building across the street 
indicates that less than two spaces per unit does not cause parking issues. The proposed 
variance will allow for significantly more parking than was constructed in the 2022 
project.  
 

12. The variance requested is the minimum variance which would alleviate the 
perceived practical difficulty. 
The applicant’s development plans were prepared for 66 parking spaces. The 
developer is not requesting additional variance beyond what is in their development 
plans. 
 

13. The variance would not be materially detrimental to the purposes of the City 
Zoning Ordinance, or to property in the same zoning district. 
The variance would comply with terms of the planned unit development that was 
previously approved by the City, and would provide significantly more parking than the 
building constructed in 2022 provided. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ZUMBROTA, MINNESOTA AS FOLLOWS: 

The application to issue a variance to allow Andy Baartman to construct a new apartment 
building with lowered off-street parking requirements is hereby approved. 

Motion introduced by ____________, seconded by ___________ and adopted this 16th day of 
October 2025 upon the following roll call vote: 
 
AYES:    NAYS:   ABSENT:  
 
SIGNED:      ATTEST: 
 

___________________________   ____________________________________ 
Todd Hammel, Mayor     Brian Grudem, City Administrator 
  
    Aye Nay       
 
Todd Hammel             ___       ____   
 

Bob Prigge   ___     ____   
 

Joan Bucher   ___    ____ 
 
Kevin Amundson  ___     ____ 
 
Fred Raasch   ___     ____ 


	10-16-25 Council Meeting Agenda
	10-16-25 Brian's Memo
	10.02.2025 draft minutes
	Pay Request 13 - Final -Mill & 6th Street Reconstruction
	10.16.2025 ap
	10-16 AVS Memo
	Res 2025-31 Rezone 211 Walnut Street
	Res 2025-32 Street Vacation 211 Walnut Street
	10-16 Keller-Baartman Parking
	Res 2025-33 Keller-Baartman Bridgeview Apartments Parking (Denied)
	Res 2025-33 Keller-Baartman Bridgeview Apartments Parking (Approved)

	Button1: 


